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December 23, 1992
Mr. Thomas T. Martin, Regional Administrator
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Region 1

475 Allendale Road
King of Prussia, PA 19406

Dear Mr, Martin:

Millstone Nuclear Power Station, Unit No. 2

INTRODUCTJON

Northeast Nuclear Energy Company (NNECO) has established conservative and
comprehensive processes regarding reportability and operability issues,
Indeed, the NRC Staff has acknowledged our improving performance in these
areas, We intend to maintain high standards of performance in the application
of evolving NRC guidance and industry wunderstanding of operability/
reportability expectations.

In Tight of our signiticant efforts on the operability/reportability process,
we were concerned when a question arose regarding that process. The question
related to two Millstone Unit No. 2 power-operated relief valve (PORV) block
valves in our Generic Letter 89-10 notor~ogoratod valve (MOV) program, We
believe a review of our operability/reportability process and its application
in the context of the Generic Letter 89-10 efforts would confirm that it is a
strong program that has been responsibly implemented.

Accordingly, to address the question which apparently arose, we wouli! like to
provide NNECO’'s intentions regarding our operability and reporvtability
process, including its application to the Generic Letter B89-10 progre™. We
also will discuss the application of that process in the corcext of the tw
PORV block valves.

DISCUSSION

In recent times, NNECO has been at the forefront ¢f NRC and industry efforts
to establish and fimplement appropriate operability and reportability
processes. NNECO diligently follows and seeks to incorporate evolving NRC
guidance 1in these impoirtant areas. NNECO wholeheartedly supports two
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fundamental principles behind the reporting and operability processes, namely,
to assure chat licensees continue to provide reasonable assurance of the
protection of the public health and safety, and to facilitate timely NRC Staff
confirmation that such reasonable assurance continues to be provided,

NRC activities in these areas have evolved over the last few years. In 1990
the Staff sponsored several workshops to receive public input regarding the
reporting process. Subsf uently, the Staff undertook to revise its reporting
guidance 1in NUREG-1022." NNECO actively participated in these efforts,
recognizing that Staff views would be incorporated into our reporting process,
as appropriate,

Our philosophy 1s to enhance our program whenever appropriate. We have
significantly enhanced our reporting process based on these developments,
including revision of procedures, issuance of our own guidance document, and
additional training of key personnel,

Regarding the consideration of operability questions, many Staff memoranda and
other informal guidance has been generated on this subject over the last few
years, Most ﬁlqnificantly. with the issuance of Generic Letter 91-18 in
November 1991, the Staff formally expressed its views regarding the
consideration of operability questions, That document has served as the basis
for enhancement to NNECO's operability processes.

NNECO has enhanced {ts operabilit{ procedure nut only to reflect more
precisely the NRC Staff views formally expressed in Gene,ic Letter 9]1-18, but
also information derived from the NRC-sponsored workshop on operability
conducted in April 1992,

We believe that the abcse demonstrates NNECO's desire to remain at the
forefront of NRC and industry efforts to enhance the operability and
reportability determination processes.

NRC Assessments of NNECO Reportability and Operability Processes

NRC reviews of NNECO processes for reportability and operability have been
recently favorable. While there have been instances in the past where
improvement in the implementation of those processes was warranted, and while
NNECO remains vigilant in seeking to identify such areas on its own, we are
comfortable with the processes as they now stand.

(1) Draft Revision 1 to NUREG-1022, "Event Reporting Systems 10 CFR 50.72
and 50.73," was issued for public comment on October 7, 1991.

(2) “Information to Licensees Regarding Two NRC Inspection Manual Sections
on Resolution of Degraded and Nonconforming Conditions and on
Operability," Generic Letter 91-18, November 7, 1991.
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Detatled NRC assessments of these programs generally agree with our own
assessment, For instance, in the recent Final SALP Report for Millstone
Station, the Staff observed that with respect to operability and reportability
decision-making, NNE&?': ;:rocoss has been found to be prompt, conservative
and soundly based." diuonnl{. during a review of the 'proqru for
Ecrforuinq operability and reportability determinations, the Staff noted that

an fmpriving trend was observed in the qu,!tty and timeliness of resolutions
of safety problems® through those programs.'*

Operability Considerations in the Generic Letter 89-10 Process

As with any comprehensive program designed to assess systems, structures or
components against new standards and methodologies, occasfons may arise in
which a question is presented regarding the ability of the affected system,
structure, or component to satisfy the new standards. This may occur despite
full and complete satisfaction of prior acceptance standards. When such a
question arises, 1t 1{s the licenset's vesponsibility to assess its
implications, incluaing bota rcportinz obligations and operability concerns.
Our program instituted in response to Generic Letter B9-10 is no exception.

In Supplement 1 to Generic Letter 89-10,"™ the NRC Staff recognizes that
operability and reportability questio.s might arise in the conduct of those
programs. However, this supplement did not impose specific criteria with
respect to operability or reportability. Rather, the comments indicate that
an actual safety problem must -xist, and if the licensee determines that a
valve will not operate under design basis conditions then it must be declared
inoperable.® ne fundamental element of this guidance is the reasoned
expectation that licensees will make operability determinations based on

(3) Letter from T. T. Martin ;NRC) to J. F. Opeka (NNECO), "Systematic
Assessment of Licensee Performance (SALP) Final port Nos. 50-245/
90-99, 50-336/90-99, and 50-423/90-99" dated August 4, 1992, at p. 22.

(4) Letter from E. C. Wenzinger (NRC) to J. F. Opeka (NNECOD), "Haddam Neck
Inspection 91-18," January 31, 1992, at p. 1.

(5§) "Supplement 1 to Generic Letter 89-10: Results of the Public Workshops,"®
June 13, 1990, Enclosed Summary of "Results" at p. 37.

(6) For instance, in response to Question 44 in Supplement 1, it is noted
the "if a safety problem is identified,...[or] if a licensee believes
that an MOV would not have operated under design-basis conditions,...the
Ticensee must comply with [reportability and operability requirements].”
(1d. at p. 37.) In addition, in response to Question 48, it is noted
that "if a licensee finds that an MOV...will not operate under design-
basis conditions [or] ... if an MOV is determined to be incapable of
operating under design-basis conditions, the MOV will be declared
inoperable." (Id. at p. 40.)
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those procedures, a further assessment of the status of the valves and the
appropriateness of certain key assumptions of the calculations were discussed
and reviewed. Again, throughout this process, unit personnel were aware of
the matters being discussed.

Nevertheless, following the discussions noted above, a conservative path was
chosen on June 13, 1992, and a formal operability/reportability evaluation was
initiated. It was Judged that this mechanism, as authorized by the unit
director, would serve to provide a means whereby the assumptions used in the
vendor calculations could be formally addressed and modified, as appropriate,.

The basis for continued assurance of operability remained the evaluations that
had been performed and referenced in the initial scoping efforts for Generic
Letter 89-10. It s important to note that work on the MOV's and the review
of the vendor calculations continued from the time the REF was initiated,
throu?h and beyond the time several weeks later, when the unit director
formally confirmed the request for a detailed evaluation. This wat a
conservative and prudent practice. We also note that this work continued
1ndeponﬂgpt of the initiation of the refueling and steam generator replacement
outage.

The subsequent operability determination was a comprehensive review which
documented additional bases for maintaining reasonable assurance of the
operability of those valves. Of course, as the evaluation proceeded in
accordance with the applicable procedure, there remained throughout reasonable
assurance that the valves were capable of performing their intended safety
functions under design basis conditions. (We note that within a few weeks of
initiating the operability determination, a recalculation of the vendor
information using more appropriate assumptions, confirmed the absence of a
potential safety problem.) Thus, as 1is typical, at each step in the
operability determination the level of assurance of operability was
1ncre|:|ng. As mentioned earlier, the fact that the plant was oporatin? for a
portion of the evaluation and shutdown for the remainder of the evaluation had
no bearing on the decision to conduct a thorough evaluation.

CONCLUS ION

In view of the above information, NNECO believes that the operability
determination process with respect to these two block valves was conducted in
a manner consistent with existing NU procedures and NRC requirements and
guidance. Throughout that process there remained reasonable assurance in the
operability of these valves.

(12) Also during this outage, reflecting NNECO's conservative appreoach to
these issues, the gear ratio of the subject valves was modified. This
modification served to enhance further our assurance of valve
operability.






